Qs — oA\ . )
City Council
101 W 10th Ave., Suite 203

Eugene, OR 97401
541-682-5010 o 541-682-5414 Fax
www.eugene-or.gov

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

October 11, 2023

12:00 p.m. CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION and URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING
City Council Wednesday work sessions will be held using virtual meeting technology.
Information about online or other options for access and participation will be available
at https://www.eugene-or.gov/3360/Webcasts-and-Meeting-Materials

Meeting of October 11, 2023;
Her Honor Mayor Lucy Vinis Presiding

Councilors
Randy Groves, President Matt Keating, Vice President
Lyndsie Leech Emily Semple
Jennifer Yeh Alan Zelenka
Mike Clark Greg Evans

12:00 p.m. CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION and
MEETING OF THE EUGENE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY

1. WORK SESSION: Riverfront Parcel 3A
A. WORK SESSION AND ACTION: Downtown Riverfront Development Atkins
Dame Terms
B. ACTION: An Ordinance Concerning the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area
and Downtown Riverfront Special Area Zone, Amending Figures 9.3155(3) and

9.6715(3) of the Eugene Code, 1971.

C. WORK SESSION and POSSIBLE ACTION: MUPTE Application - Riverfront Parcel
3A

2. WORK SESSION: Finance and Revenue Update

October 11, 2023 Work Session


https://www.eugene-or.gov/3360/Webcasts-and-Meeting-Materials

The Eugene City Council welcomes your interest in these agenda items. This meeting location is wheelchair-accessible. For the
hearing impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 hours' notice prior to the meeting. Spanish-language interpretation will
also be provided with 48 hours' notice. To arrange for these services, contact the receptionist at 541-682-5010. City Council
meetings are telecast live on Metro Television, Comcast channel 21, and rebroadcast later in the week.

El consejo de la Ciudad de Eugene agradece su interés en estos asuntos de la agenda. El lugar de la reunién tiene acceso para sillas
de ruedas. Se puede proveer a un intérprete para las personas con discapacidad auditiva si avisa con 48 horas de anticipacién.
También se puede proveer interpretacidn para espafiol si avisa con 48 horas de anticipacidn. Para reservar estos servicios llame al
541-682-5010. Las reuniones del consejo de la ciudad se transmiten en vivo por Metro Television, Canal 21 de Comcast y son
retransmitidas durante la semana.

For more information, contact the Council Coordinator at 541-682-5010,
or visit us online at www.eugene-or.gov.

October 11, 2023 Work Session




URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Work Session and Action: Downtown Riverfront Development
Atkins Dame Terms

Meeting Date: October 11, 2023 Agenda Item: 1A
Department: Planning and Development Staff Contact: Will Dowdy
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number: 541-682-5340
ISSUE STATEMENT

At this work session, the Urban Renewal Agency Board will be asked to review and take action on
a proposed change to the terms the Agency Director uses to approve the Disposition and
Development Agreement for the Downtown Riverfront. The change would allow for the
development of additional housing units on Parcel 3A. (See map in Attachment A.)

BACKGROUND

The Urban Renewal Agency Board’s discussion of Downtown Riverfront redevelopment is part of
a decades-long community planning and visioning effort to connect downtown to the river. The
Urban Renewal Agency Board purchased about 17 acres of largely vacant Downtown Riverfront
property from the Eugene Water & Electric Board in April 2018. Based on terms the Urban
Renewal Agency Board approved in May 2020, the Agency Director signed a Disposition and
Development Agreement (DDA) for the sale of about 8 acres of Downtown Riverfront property to
Atkins Dame.

Among other items, the terms approved in May 2020 included a concept plan that outlined
minimums and maximums for project features for each parcel included in the 8 acres, such as
number of units, number of stories, and commercial square footage. (See Attachment B for the
approved minimums and maximums). This approach was used to provide flexibility so that the
best outcomes could be achieved given market conditions at the time.

Atkins Dame is proposing a 237-unit multi-family residential project on Parcel 3A and has applied
for a Multiple-Unit Property Tax Exemption from the City for this project. The terms approved in
May 2020 limit the development on Parcel 3A to a maximum of about 200 units. In order for
Atkins Dame’s proposed project to be in compliance with the approved terms and the DDA, the
Urban Renewal Agency Board would need to revise the terms so that the Agency Director has
authority to amend the DDA to allow for increased density.

The proposed motion provided below would revise the term to allow a maximum of 275 housing
units. (See suggested revision in Attachment B.)

October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1A
CC Agenda Page 1


http://www.eugene-or.gov/

Downtown Riverfront Progress

Atkins Dame continues to make progress on development of the Downtown Riverfront
neighborhood. Construction on the first building, located on Parcel 7, began in August 2022 and is
expected to be completed in Spring 2024. Construction on Parcel 3BC began in May 2023. Sale of
the final two parcels (including Parcel 3A) is expected by December 2024.

HIP Connection

The proposed project on Parcel 3A will contribute to the Housing Implementation Pipeline (HIP)
goals. The HIP is the 5-year internal work plan to coordinate current and future resources, goals,
and priorities with a systems-thinking approach to housing across the full spectrum from people
experiencing homelessness to overall housing supply. Specifically, this project would provide 237
units towards the 5-year overall housing goal of increasing the amount of housing downtown by
50 percent (from 2021), and market-rate units in the forecasted pipeline of City supported units

(Appendix C of the HIP).

Other Possible Parcel 3A Actions

At the City Council work session on the same date, City Council will be considering two other items
related to the proposed project on Parcel 3A. After this Urban Renewal Agency Board item, Council
will consider a possible land use code amendment to increase the maximum building height for
Parcel 3A. Council also will consider an application for a Multiple-Unit Property Tax Exemption
application for the proposed project. More information about each of these items can be found in
their respective Agenda Item Summaries.

RELATED CITY POLICIES

Climate Action Plan (CAP) 2.0

CAP 2.0 includes multiple strategies that support the development of downtown and increase of
compact housing in the downtown. Smaller homes tend to have a smaller carbon footprint during
construction and use, and housing units built close to transit, jobs, and other amenities allow
residents to access the community using fewer trips.

Eugene Downtown Plan

e Use downtown development tools and incentives to encourage development that provides
character and density downtown.

e Actively pursue public/private development opportunities to achieve the vision for an active,
vital, growing downtown.

e Downtown development shall support the urban qualities of density, vitality, livability, and
diversity to create a downtown, urban environment.

Housing Implementation Pipeline (HIP)

Encouraging compact development in the downtown core is one critical way to provide housing
for our growing community. Increasing the number of housing units in the downtown core
achieves other policy goals related to climate recovery and resiliency, compact development
transportation efficiency, downtown vibrancy, and fiscal sustainability. A target goal in the HIP is
to increase the amount of housing downtown by 50percent from 2021: an increase of over 1,000
units.

October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1A
CC Agenda Page 2


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eugene-or.gov%2F4889%2FHousing-Implementation-Pipeline-HIP&data=04%7C01%7CADSouza%40eugene-or.gov%7Cc51b050e99154fcca64708d9f0afa6c2%7C0c0d3453aa1d41bc8aa35c843d4ca0e8%7C0%7C0%7C637805459475444542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=CWoSok4LtlLh9N8%2BDQW4dKcR4%2Fic8kdUleIsa2rfVpg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eugene-or.gov%2FDocumentCenter%2FView%2F64528%2FC-Forecasted-City-Supported-Shelter-and-Housing-PIPELINE-TABLE-%3FbidId%3D&data=04%7C01%7CADSouza%40eugene-or.gov%7Cc51b050e99154fcca64708d9f0afa6c2%7C0c0d3453aa1d41bc8aa35c843d4ca0e8%7C0%7C0%7C637805459475444542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=z5BKV2iG6PvV2x%2FX63IsetGVfTybEchXTHsGBLqJwvI%3D&reserved=0
https://www.eugene-or.gov/4284/Climate-Action-Plan-20
https://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/41501/Downtown-Plan
https://www.eugene-or.gov/4889/Housing-Implementation-Pipeline-HIP

Envision Eugene Pillars

o Provide ample economic opportunities for all community members.

o Promote compact urban development and efficient transportation options.
o Protect, repair, and enhance neighborhood livability.

o Provide for adaptable, flexible, and collaborative implementation.

Strategic Plan Goals
Urgent Community Needs
e Strategic Goal: Stabilize the cost of housing.
o High-Impact Action: Continue to implement and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of
development and redevelopment tools to increase the supply of housing.
e Strategic Goal: Increase the vibrancy, economic vitality, and livability of downtown.
o High-Impact Action: Continue to implement and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of
development and redevelopment tools to support commercial activity.
o High-Impact Action: Improve Eugene’s business environment and reputation as a place to
do business, including improving overall community livability.
e Strategic Goal: Advance climate action and community resilience to natural and human-caused
disasters
o High-Impact Action: Decrease transportation-related emissions and make the
transportation network diverse and adaptable through continued implementation of the
Eugene 2035 Transportation System Plan and related compact development actions in
Envision Eugene.
o High-Impact Action: Continue to implement strategies from the Climate Action Plan 2.0 to
improve and enhance efficiency and resilience of buildings in Eugene, including City-owned
facilities.

PREVIOUS AGENCY BOARD DIRECTION

May 26, 2020, Work Session

Move to approve the proposed terms and authorize the Agency Director to take all actions
necessary to transfer the real property underlying certain rights of way in the Downtown
Riverfront to the City of Eugene. (Passed 6:2)

AGENCY BOARD OPTIONS

1. Approve the suggested revision to allow for up to 275 housing units on Parcel 3A.
2. Propose modifications to the suggested revision.

3. Reject the suggested revision.

AGENCY DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION
The Agency Director recommends approval of the suggested revision to the approved DDA terms
that will allow for the development of up to 275 housing units than currently allowed.

October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1A
CC Agenda Page 3


https://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/70743/7-26-2023-Strategic-Report-FINAL-PDF
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/138630

SUGGESTED MOTION

Move to direct the Agency Director to revise the DDA to allow up to 275 housing units on Parcel
3A.

ATTACHMENTS
A. Map of Eugene Riverfront District Project Site
B. Approved Minimums and Maximums

FOR MORE INFORMATION

Contact: Will Dowdy, Community Development Director
Telephone: 541-682-5340

Staff E-Mail: wdowdy@eugene-or.gov

October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1A
CC Agenda Page 4


mailto:wdowdy@eugene-or.gov

Attachment A

Downtown Riverfront

E 3rd Ave

E 4th Ave

Alton Baker Park

E 5th Ave

E 6th Ave

E 7th Ave

SUBSTATION

.~ Affordable Housing
[ Developer Purchased
- Developer to Purchase by December 2024
- Developer to Ground Lease - Agency to Keep
7- Agency to Keep
—— Feet

|_- _1 Riverfront Site - Agency Purchased 0 100

E 8th Ave

=)

New Infrastructure

. Quiet Zone Crossings City of Eugene, PDD
9/25/2023

e

Caution: This map is based on imprecise source data, subject to change, and for general reference only.

CC Agenda Page 5 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1A



Attachment B

Approved Minimums and Maximums
(excerpt from Atkins Dame Development and Disposition Agreement)

Parcel
4 stories 5 over 2
Suggested
~ 100 units MF or Hotel ~ 200 units MF or Hotel <— Ravision:
Parcel 32 ~5k sqft retail ~ 10k sqft retail 275 MF units
tuck under/surface pkg structured parking
1 floor of office in exchange for units; not on 1 floor of office in exchange for units; not on
ground floor ground floor
3 stories 5over2
~ 14 units TH ~ 125 units MF
Parcel 3¢ ?
NO retail NO retail
tuck under/surface pkE structured parking
3 stories 5 over 2
parcel 3b ~14 unqu TH 9% uv.ﬂts MF
NO retail NO retail
tuck under/surface pkg structured parking
3 staries Sover2*
~ 6 units MF ~ 125 units MF
Parcel 1
NO retail NO retail
tuck under/surface pkg structured parklng
3 stories 4 stories
~ 13 units TH ~ 50 units MF
Parcels 4 &5 *
~ 2k sqft live/work, retall ~ 4k sqft live/work, retail
tuck under/surface pkg tuck under parkinlgr
4 stories 5 over 2
Parcel 7 ~95 units MF ~175 units MF
~4k sqft retail ~4k sqft retail
tuck under/surface pkg structured parkinL
4 stories 5 over 2 (9A); 4 story (9B)
9A ~ 80 units MF ~218 units MF
Parcel 9 9B ~ 11 units TH
NO retail ~2k sqft retail
Tuck under/surface pkﬁ Structured parkin}
4 stories 5 over 2 (10A); 4 story (10B)
10A ~ 75 units MF ~ 195 units MF
Parcel 10 10B ~ 12 units TH
NO retail ~ 2K sq ft retail
Tuck under/surface pkg Structured parking
SCHEDULE 7.1-A- DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS—MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM PAGE 1

CC Agenda Page 6 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Iltem 1A




Attachment B

Multi-Family (MF): Minimum = 356; Maximum = 1213

Townhomes (TH): Minimum = 64; Maximum = 0

Retail does NOT include building services (e.g. fitness center, lobby, leasing/business office).
Maximum housing must include the maximum retail.

* Requires acquisition of adjacent property(ies)

SCHEDULE 7.1-A- DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS —MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM PAGE 2

CC Agenda Page 7 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1A



EUGENE CiTY COUNCIL N\
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY ~—

Action: An Ordinance Concerning the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area and
Downtown Riverfront Special Area Zone, Amending Figures 9.3155(3) and
9.6715(3) of the Eugene Code, 1971.

Meeting Date: October 11, 2023 Agenda Item: 1B
Department: Planning and Development Staff Contact: Dylan Huber-Heidorn
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number: 541-682-5340
ISSUE STATEMENT

City Council is scheduled to take action on a land use code amendment to increase the maximum
building height for a single parcel located within the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area to allow
for additional development opportunities downtown. The amendment proposes increasing the
maximum building height on the parcel located on the southeast corner of the intersection of 4th
Avenue and High Street. The subject property’s allowable building height is governed by the
Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area and the S-DR Downtown Riverfront Special Area Zone
Height Regulating Plan. The proposed amendment would increase the allowable building height
from 500 feet above sea level (approximately 70 feet above grade) to 530 feet above sea level
(approximately 100 feet above grade). The proposed ordinance is provided as Attachment A.

BACKGROUND

The Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area (defined in Eugene Code (EC) 9.6715) is a height
limitation area in the land use code that applies to properties located between the Willamette
River and 6t Avenue, and between Washington Street and Coburg Road. It was established to
maximize the views to and from Skinner Butte as a reaction to the construction of Ya-Po-Ah
Terrace, Eugene’s tallest building.

The Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area restricts the height of buildings, accessory roof
structures, and architectural features. In 2018, City Council approved an increase in the
allowable building height for properties within the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area
located on the southern half-block between 5t and 6t Avenues from Washington Street to
Coburg Road. Earlier this year, City Council approved an amendment for similar increases in
allowable building height on several additional lots north and south of 5t Avenue near Oak
Street.

In 2018, the City’s Urban Renewal Agency Board purchased approximately 17 acres of vacant
riverfront land from Eugene Water and Electric Board, including the property that is the

October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1B
CC Agenda Page 8


http://www.eugene-or.gov/
https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.6715

subject of this application. The subject property is proposed to be developed as one of the early
projects of the Eugene River District, a project by Atkins Dame in coordination with the City to
build up the former industrial riverfront area as the Downtown Riverfront, a neighborhood of
housing and commercial uses.

The proposed development would be the project within the Downtown Riverfront located
closest to the already highly developed 5t Avenue corridor and market district. The developer
is proposing to construct a seven-story structure on the currently vacant property and has
applied for a Multiple-Unit Property Tax Exemption from the City for this project. The current
restrictions of the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area do not allow for the intended building
heights and by extension limit the possible residential unit density on the subject property.
The subject property has a ground grade of approximately 430 feet above sea level, creating an
effective height limit of approximately 70 feet. The S-DR code allows an additional 12 feet of
height for rooftop equipment and architectural features, and the proposed code language
retains that allowance.

The Eugene Downtown Plan includes numerous policies to promote density in the Plan area,
including an element focused on developing the riverfront to connect Eugene’s downtown to
the Willamette River. The Plan also identifies a list of development opportunity areas which
includes the “Midgely’s block”, which is the location of this parcel. An update to the Skinner
Butte Height Limitation Area and the S-DR zone pertaining to additional building height for the
subject property has the potential to achieve several Downtown Plan objectives and policies.

The City’s Community Development Division of the Planning and Development Department
applied for this code amendment on June 28, 2023.

City Council Process & Public Hearing

City Council held a public hearing on the proposed land use code amendments on September
18, 2023. Notice of the City Council public hearing was mailed in accordance with Chapter 9 of
the Eugene Code. All notice procedures were provided consistent with the Type IV procedures
from the Eugene Code. A complete set of record materials for this proposed land use code
amendment are available for review at the Planning and Development Department at 99 West
10th Avenue.

At the City Council’s public hearing on September 18, 2023, only the applicant provided
testimony. No written testimony has been received as of September 26, 2023. Testimony
received after 5pm on September 26, 2023, will be provided to Councilors electronically. A
complete set of record materials has been provided to Councilors electronically and made
available in a binder located in the City Council Offices. As a courtesy, some of the materials are
also available for review online here.

Planning Commission Recommendation

The Eugene Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed land use code
amendments on August 15, 2023. Notice of the Planning Commission public hearing was mailed
and posted in accordance with the Type IV procedures from the Eugene Code. At the Planning
Commission public hearing, three people testified, including the applicant, one other person in

October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1B
CC Agenda Page 9


https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/276781?embedInPoint=1477&embedOutPoint=2616&shareMethod=link
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/276781?embedInPoint=1477&embedOutPoint=2616&shareMethod=link
https://pdd.eugene-or.gov/LandUse/SearchApplicationDocuments?file=CA-23-0002
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/275179/eugene-planning-commission-public-hearing-august-15-2023

favor of the amendment, and one person opposed to the amendment. No written testimony was
received prior to the hearing. On August 15, 2023, the Eugene Planning Commission voted
unanimously to recommend approval of the proposed land use code amendment.

Procedures/Applicable Approval Criteria

This proposed site-specific land use code amendment is subject to the Type IV (quasi-judicial)
application procedures (EC 9.7400 through EC 9.7455) as well as the applicable approval
criteria from EC 9.8065. The Type IV process includes public notice and a hearing before the
Planning Commission, which then forwards a recommendation to City Council. City Council
held its own public hearing on September 18, 2023, and is now being asked to make a final
decision on the proposed amendment.

Other Possible Parcel 3A Actions

At this work session, Council will be considering two other items related to the project
proposed on the subject property. Prior to this item, the Urban Renewal Agency Board will
consider a revision to terms the Agency Director uses to approve the development agreement
with Atkins Dame that would increase the maximum number of residential units allowed on
the subject property to facilitate the construction of the proposed 237-unit project. After this
item, Council will consider an application for a Multiple-Unit Property Tax Exemption for the
proposed project. More information about each of these items can be found in their respective
Agenda Item Summaries.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DIRECTION

September 18, 2023, Public Hearing

Council held a public hearing on the proposed code amendment; there were no speakers for
the public hearing.

RELATED CITY POLICIES

Findings of compliance with the City’s relevant adopted land use policies, as well as Statewide
Planning Goals and other approval criteria for these land use code amendments, are included
as Exhibit C to the draft ordinance (Attachment A to this AIS).

COUNCIL OPTIONS

1. Adopt the ordinance as proposed in Attachment A to this AlS.

2. Adopt the ordinance with specific modifications as determined by the City Council.
3. Take no action.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION
The City Manager recommends adoption of the ordinance as provided in Attachment A.

October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1B
CC Agenda Page 10


https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/09_TypeIVApp
https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.8065
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/276781?embedInPoint=1477&embedOutPoint=2616&shareMethod=link

SUGGESTED MOTION
Move to adopt An Ordinance Concerning the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area, Amending
Figure 9.3155(3) and Figure 9.6715(3) of the Eugene Code, 1971.

ATTACHMENTS

A. Proposed Ordinance: An Ordinance Concerning the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area
and Downtown Riverfront Special Area Zone, Amending Figures 9.3155(3) and 9.6715(3) of
the Eugene Code, 1971
a. Exhibit A - Figure EC 9.6715(3)
b. Exhibit B - Figure EC 9.3155(3)
c. Exhibit C - Findings

FOR MORE INFORMATION

Staff Contact: Dylan Huber-Heidorn, Development Analyst
Telephone: 541-682-5475

Staff E-Mail:  dhuber-heidorn@eugene-or.gov

October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1B
CC Agenda Page 11


mailto:dhuber-heidorn@eugene-or.gov

Attachment A

ORDINANCE NO.
AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING THE SKINNER BUTTE HEIGHT LIMITATION
AREA AND THE DOWNTOWN RIVERFRONT SPECIAL AREA ZONE,
AMENDING FIGURES 9.3155(3)(A) AND 9.6715(3) OF THE EUGENE CODE,
1971.

THE CITY OF EUGENE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Figure 9.3155(3)(a) is amended as shown in Exhibit A to this Ordinance.

Section 2. Figure 9.6715(3) is amended as shown in Exhibit B to this Ordinance.

Section 3. The findings set forth in Exhibit C attached to this Ordinance are adopted as
findings in support of this Ordinance.

Section 4. The City Recorder, at the request of, or with the concurrence of the City Attorney,
is authorized to administratively correct any reference errors contained herein or in other
provisions of the Eugene Code, 1971, to the provisions added, amended, or repealed herein.

Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance
is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such portion
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remaining portions hereof. Further, if this Ordinance is remanded back to the
City Council for further action by the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals, those sections,
subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions that do not require action on remand shall
be deemed separate, distinct, and independent provisions and such remand shall not affect their

validity or effect.

Passed by the City Council this Approved by the Mayor this
day of , 2023 day of , 2023
City Recorder Mayor

Ordinance - Page 1 of 1
CC Agenda Page 12 October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1B



Attachment A

Exhibit A
Figure 9.6715(3) A

N—
Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area w

illamette River

N_.AWRENCE

660 feet

E 2ND AVE

W 3RD AVE

AL
LAJ

LINCOLN ST

RSELRS
ERIECK X
O R K7
RSKRRRKS

OLIVE ST
WILLAMETTE ST

OAK| SK

(1] Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area Boundary
R Opportunity Area

CC Agenda Page 13 October 11, 2023 Work Session - I[tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit B

Proposed Figure 9.3155(3)(a)

KEY
Build-to line (BTL)
—_— == Property Line
PESEN
N,
I =g ™| Maximum building envelope.

Buildings shall be a maximum

elevation of 500 feet above sea

level, except that buildings or

portions of buildings constructed _—
within the Opportunity Area

defined in Figure 9.6715(3) shall

have a maximum height of 530

feet above mean sea level.

. Minimum building envelope.

o Buildings shall be a minimum of
two stories; with 50 percent of the
building footprint allowed to be one
story.

CC Agenda Page 14 October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit C

Skinner Butte/Downtown Riverfront Height Code Amendment
(City File CA 23-2)

Overview

Skinner Butte/Downtown Riverfront Height Code Amendment: The goal of this site-specific land use
code amendment is to increase allowed building heights on a single piece of property to facilitate
additional development opportunities in the Downtown Riverfront. The City Council approved a similar
amendment in 2023 which impacted six properties in the 5% Street Market area. Additionally, the City
undertook a similar process in 2018 which resulted in an allowance for increased building heights along
the entire southern half block between 5" and 6™ Avenues and between Coburg Road and Washington
Street. This code amendment allows for greater building heights on a property on the east side of High
Street, between 4™ and 5" Avenues (“the subject property”). The Community Development Division of
the Planning and Development Department is the applicant for this amendment.

The subject property’s allowable building height is governed by the Skinner Butte Height Limitation
Area (Eugene Code 9.6715(3)) and the S-DR Downtown Riverfront Special Area Zone Height Regulating
Plan (Eugene Code 9.3155(3), Figure 9.3155 and Figure 9.3155(3)(a)). This amendment will increase
allowable building heights on the subject property from 500 feet above sea level to 530 feet above
mean sea level. This will result in an allowance for buildings up to approximately 100 feet in height on
the subject property; development on this property was previously limited to approximately 70 feet in
height.

Findings
Eugene Code Section 9.8065 requires that the following approval criteria (in bold italics) be applied to a
code amendment:

(1) The amendment is consistent with applicable statewide planning goals adopted by the Land
Conservation and Development Commission.

Goal 1 - Citizen Involvement. To develop a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity for
citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process.

The City has acknowledged provisions for community involvement which ensure the opportunity for
community members to be involved in all phases of the planning process and set out requirements for
such involvement. The code amendment does not amend the citizen involvement program. The process
for adopting this amendment complied with Goal 1 because it is consistent with the City’s acknowledged
citizen involvement provisions.

A Notice of Proposed Amendment was filed with the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and
Development on July 11, 2023, and a notice of the Planning Commission’s public hearing on the
application was mailed on July 14, 2023. Notice was posted on the subject property along the frontage of
the abutting improved streets and in three locations within 300 feet of the subject property on July 25,
2023. A public hearing was held before the Planning Commission on August 15, 2023, followed by

Findings - 1
CC Agenda Page 15 October 11, 2023 Work Session - [tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit C

deliberations. Following deliberations, Planning Commission made a recommendation that the Eugene
City Council approve the proposed code amendments.

The City Council held a public hearing on September 18, 2023. A notice of the public hearing was provided
on September 8, 2023, in accordance with Chapter 9 of the Eugene Code.

These processes afford ample opportunity for citizen involvement consistent with Goal 1. Therefore, the
code amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 1.

Goal 2 - Land Use Planning. To establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a basis for all
decisions and actions related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual basis for such decisions and
actions.

Eugene’s land use code specifies the procedure and criteria that were used in considering this
amendment. The record shows that there is an adequate factual basis for the amendment. The Goal 2
coordination requirement is met when the City engages in an exchange, or invites such an exchange,
between the City and any affected governmental unit and when the City uses the information obtained in
the exchange to balance the needs of the community.

To comply with the Goal 2 coordination requirement, the City engaged in an exchange about the subject
of this amendment with affected governmental units. Specifically, the City provided notice of the
proposed action and opportunity to comment to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and
Development as well as to Lane County and the City of Springfield. There are no exceptions to Statewide
Planning Goal 2 required for this amendment. Therefore, the amendment is consistent with Statewide
Planning Goal 2.

Goal 3 - Agricultural Lands. To preserve agricultural lands.

The amendment will only affect property located within the City of Eugene and does not affect any land
zoned or designated for agricultural use. Therefore, Statewide Planning Goal 3 does not apply.

Goal 4 - Forest Lands. To conserve forest lands.

The amendment will only affect property located within the City of Eugene and does not affect any land
zoned or designated for forest use. Therefore, Statewide Planning Goal 4 does not apply.

Goal 5 - Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Natural Resources. To conserve open space and
protect natural and scenic resources.

OAR 660-023-0250(3) provides: Local governments are not required to apply Goal 5 in consideration of a
PAPA unless the PAPA dffects a Goal 5 resource. For purposes of this section, a PAPA would affect a Goal 5
resource only if:

(a) The PAPA creates or amends a resource list or a portion of an acknowledged plan or land use
regulation adopted in order to protect a significant Goal 5 resource or to address specific
requirements of Goal 5;

(b) The PAPA allows new uses that could be conflicting uses with a particular significant Goal 5
resource site on an acknowledged resource list; or

Findings - 2
CC Agenda Page 16 October 11, 2023 Work Session - I[tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit C

(c) The PAPA amends an acknowledged UGB and factual information is submitted demonstrating
that a resource site, or the impact areas of such a site, is included in the amended UGB area.

This amendment does not create or amend the City’s list of Goal 5 resources, does not amend a land use
code provision adopted to protect a significant Goal 5 resource or to address specific requirements of
Goal 5, and does not amend the acknowledged urban growth boundary. Therefore, the amendment does
not affect (a) or (c).

In regard to (b), the property subject to the amendment does not contain any Goal 5 resources. However,
the 1978 Scenic Sites Working Paper and accompanying map, which are a part of the City’s adopted
significant Goal 5 inventory (see Ordinance No. 20351), identifies Skinner Butte as a “Scenic Site” (as both
a “Vista” and as containing “Prominent and Plentiful Vegetation”). Per OAR 660-023-0230, “scenic views
and sites” are lands valued for their aesthetic appearance.

Skinner Butte has long been recognized and valued in the community for its aesthetic appearance, which
is evidenced by the adoption of the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area in 1968. Notably, this predates

the adoption of Statewide Planning Goal 5 in December 1974. Section 9.6715(1) of the Eugene Code (EC)
describes the purpose of height limitation areas as follows: “Certain geographical landmarks have scenic
attributes that are of value to the community as a whole. To protect views to and from these landmarks,
special limitations on building height are established on and around them.”

While the properties immediately surrounding the subject property vary in the maximum building heights
allowed by their base zoning and applicable overlays, the majority of surrounding properties are within
the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area and thus have a base height allowance that is the same as the
subject property (500 feet above sea level). As a result of amendments to the Skinner Butte Height
Limitation Area in 2018 and 2023, portions of the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area allow building
heights up to 530 feet above mean sea level on properties that previously allowed up to 500 feet. The
current proposal would extend this higher limit to one additional property.

A variety of natural and artificial features in the general riverfront area currently block views of Skinner
Butte or will block them in the future regardless of the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area. The Ferry
Street viaduct obscures the butte from many potential viewing locations in the general riverfront area.
From locations west of the viaduct, views of the butte would be obstructed by a building on the subject
property even if it were constructed within the currently allowed height limit, with the additional
proposed height making no difference to the condition. From locations east of the viaduct, many views of
the butte which currently exist will be blocked by either recently planted trees or buildings planned for
construction in the Downtown Riverfront which are not included in the Skinner Butte Height Limitation
Area.

Overall, a building taking full advantage of the proposed increased height limit would only negligibly
impact views of Skinner Butte compared to a building constructed under the current limit. Additionally,
the subject property is located roughly 700 feet from the base of Skinner Butte and 1,400 feet from the
viewing area at the top of the butte. Given the distance between the subject property and Skinner Butte,
the potential impact on views to and from the butte is minimal. Considering these factors, the proposed
increase in allowable building height can be achieved in a way that is sensitive to Skinner Butte.

Findings - 3
CC Agenda Page 17 October 11, 2023 Work Session - I[tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit C

The remainder of the height limitation area will remain in place, and as these findings demonstrate,
development that will be allowed by this amendment to the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area does
not interfere with the scenic value of the butte or the viewing of its prominent and plentiful vegetation to
a greater extent than the development that would be allowed in the absence of this amendment. For all
these reasons the amendment does not allow new uses that could be conflicting uses with a significant
Goal 5 resource site. The amendment does not amend an acknowledged urban growth boundary.
Therefore, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 5.

Goal 6 - Air, Water and land Resource Quality. To maintain and improve the quality of the air, water and
land resources of the state.

Goal 6 addresses waste and process discharges from development and is aimed at protecting air, water,
and land from impacts from those discharges. The amendment does not affect the City’s ability to provide
for clean air, water, or land resources. Therefore, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning
Goal 6.

Goal 7 - Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards. To protect life and property from natural disasters
and hazards.

Goal 7 requires that local government planning programs include provisions to protect people and
property from natural hazards such as floods, landslides, earthquakes and related hazards, tsunamis, and
wildfires. The amendment does not amend or repeal any policies or regulations that protect people and
property from natural hazards. Therefore, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 7.

Goal 8 - Recreational Needs. To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and visitors, and
where appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities including destination
resorts.

Goal 8 ensures that recreational facilities are provided to Oregon residents and tourists and is primarily
concerned with the provision of those facilities in non-urban areas of the state. The amendment does not
affect the City’s provisions for or access to recreation areas, facilities, or recreational opportunities.
Therefore, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 8.

Goal 9 - Economic Development. To provide adequate opportunities throughout the state for a variety of
economic activities vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens.

Goal 9 requires cities to evaluate the supply and demand of commercial land relative to community
economic objectives. The amendment does not impact the supply of industrial or commercial lands.
Instead, the amendment increases the capacity of existing land zoned to allow mixed use development by
allowing additional building height. Therefore, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal
9.

Goal 10 - Housing. To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state.

Goal 10 requires the City to provide an adequate supply of residential buildable land to accommodate the
City’s estimated housing needs for a 20-year planning period. The Envision Eugene Residential Land
Supply Study (2012-2032) was adopted by the City of Eugene in 2017 as a refinement of the Envision

Findings - 4
CC Agenda Page 18 October 11, 2023 Work Session - I[tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit C

Eugene Comprehensive Plan and complies with the requirements of Goal 10 and Chapter 660, division 008
of the Oregon Administrative Rules.

The amendment does not alter or amend the City’s adopted Envision Eugene Residential Land Supply
Study. The subject property is designated High Density Residential with Mixed Use and Nodal
Development. The amendment does not impact the supply of residential buildable land, because the
subject property is classified as “Committed or Protected Lands.” These categories are distinct from
“Vacant” or “Partially Vacant Residential Lands” because they were not considered as having future
development or redevelopment potential when the Residential Land Supply Study was done (see
Residential Land Supply Study Part | — Page 5. Land in government ownership was classified as
“Committed” as part of the study.) The amendments will not re-zone or re-designate land from residential
use to a nonresidential use. Accordingly, the amendments do not impact the supply or availability of
residential lands included in the documented supply of “buildable land” that is available for residential
development as inventoried in the acknowledged Residential Lands Supply Study. Finally, the
amendments will increase maximum building height on the affected property, which will allow for the
development of a greater number of residential units than the number of units that could have been built
without the amendment. The amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 10.

Goal 11- Public Facilities and Services. To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of
public facilities and services to serve as a framework for urban and rural development.

The amendment does not affect the City’s provision of public facilities and services. Therefore, Statewide
Planning Goal 11 does not apply.

Goal 12- Transportation. To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic transportation
system.

The Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0060) contains the following requirement:

(1) If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a land use regulation
(including a zoning map) would significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility, then
the local government must put in place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule, unless the
amendment is allowed under section (3), (9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or land use regulation
amendment significantly affects a transportation facility if it would:

(a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility
(exclusive of correction of map errors in an adopted plan);

(b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or

(c) Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection based
on projected conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified in the
adopted TSP. As part of evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic projected
to be generated within the area of the amendment may be reduced if the amendment
includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that would demonstrably limit traffic
generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand management. This
reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the significant effect of the amendment.
(A) Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional

classification of an existing or planned transportation facility;

(B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such

Findings - 5
CC Agenda Page 19 October 11, 2023 Work Session - I[tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit C

that it would not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or
comprehensive plan; or

(C) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is
otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP
or comprehensive plan.

The amendment does not change the functional classification of a transportation facility, change the
standards implementing a functional classification system, or degrade the performance of a facility
otherwise projected to not meet performance standards. Therefore, the amendment does not have a
significant effect under (a) or (b). In regard to (c), the level of increased development that may result from
the additional building height would have a negligible impact on any transportation facility. Therefore, the
amendment does not significantly affect any existing or future transportation facilities. Based on the
above findings, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 12.

Goal 13 - Energy Conservation. To conserve energy.

The amendment does not negatively impact energy conservation. Instead, increased capacity for
development on the subject property allows for additional construction of buildings that are likely to
consume less energy per unit area than the same uses would consume in a smaller building. Goal 13 is
also concerned with the provision of efficient transportation options; the amendment would provide for
denser development which is more suited to public transit and other forms of energy efficient
transportation. Based on these findings, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 13.

Goal 14 - Urbanization. To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use.

The amendment does not affect the City’s provisions regarding the transition of land from rural to urban
uses. Therefore, Statewide Planning Goal 14 does not apply.

Goal 15 - Willamette River Greenway. To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the natural, scenic,
historical, agricultural, economic and recreational qualities of lands along the Willamette River as the
Willamette River Greenway.

The amendment does not contain any changes that affect the Willamette River Greenway regulations, nor
is the subject property within the adopted Greenway boundary; therefore, Statewide Planning Goal 15
does not apply.

Goal 16 through 19 - Estuarine Resources, Coastal Shorelands, Beaches and Dunes, and Ocean Resources.

There are no coastal, ocean, estuarine, or beach and dune resources related to the property affected by
this amendment. Therefore, these goals are not relevant, and the amendment will not affect compliance
with Statewide Planning Goals 16 through 19.

Findings - 6
CC Agenda Page 20 October 11, 2023 Work Session - I[tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit C

(2) The amendment is consistent with applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan and applicable
adopted refinement plans.

Applicable Metro Plan Policies

The following policies from the Metro Plan (identified below in italics) are applicable to this amendment.
To the extent that the following policies constitute mandatory approval criteria, based on the findings
provided below, the amendment is consistent with and supported by the applicable provisions of the
Metro Plan.

Environmental Designh Element

E.5 Carefully develop sites that provide visual diversity to the urban area and optimize their visual
and personal accessibility to residents.

The intent of this amendment is to permit taller buildings on a certain specific property while still
preserving the views to and from Skinner Butte. The height standards in the amendment are still more
restrictive than those in adjacent zones or other areas of the Downtown Riverfront Special Area Zone, so
they will preserve views to and from Skinner Butte.

E.6 Local jurisdictions shall carefully evaluate their development regulations to ensure that they
address environmental design considerations, such as, but not limited to, safety, crime
prevention, aesthetics, and compatibility with existing and anticipated adjacent uses
(particularly considering high and medium density development locating adjacent to low
density residential).

Consistent with this policy, the amendment provides a creative solution to preserving the views to and
from Skinner Butte while promoting commercial and residential development downtown.

Envision Eugene Comprehensive Plan
The Envision Eugene Comprehensive Plan does not contain any policies relevant to this amendment.

Applicable Refinement Plans
The Eugene Downtown Plan (2004) contains policies relevant to this amendment:

Chapter 1: Strong Regional Center, Policy 1. Downtown development shall support the urban qualities
of density, vitality, livability and diversity to create a downtown, urban environment.

The amendment supports the development of a denser, more peopled downtown. Additionally, it
represents regulatory flexibility that makes residential development more appealing to property owners
as an alternative to leaving downtown land as vacant lots, surface parking, or similar uses with significant
negative externalities. The amendment and its promotion of additional residential units, vitality, and
downtown livability are consistent with this policy.

Chapter 2: Building a Downtown, Policy 2. Use downtown development tools and incentives to
encourage development that provides character and density downtown.

Reasonable use of tools such as height limitation areas in combination with incentives such as increased

Findings - 7
CC Agenda Page 21 October 11, 2023 Work Session - I[tem 1B



Attachment A
Exhibit C

height allowances can achieve the multiple goals of downtown density, appreciation of natural
landscapes, and the other priorities embodied in the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area. The
amendment is consistent with this policy.

Chapter 3: Great Streets, Policy 1. Emphasize Broadway, Willamette Street, 5th and 8th Avenues as
Great Streets through public improvements and development guidelines.
Include portions of these streets as follows:

e Willamette between 5th and 13th Avenues

e Broadway between Lincoln and Hilyard

e 5th Avenue between Lincoln and High Street

(with potential extension to the Willamette River)

» 8th Avenue between Willamette Street and the Willamette River.

5t Avenue is a key linkage between the Downtown Riverfront—including the affected property—and the
rest of downtown, and its continued importance to downtown has led to the development growing
around it: the 5™ Street Market. Flexibility in development standards around this great street will
incentivize filling gaps in the streetscape. Additionally, with the completion of the 5" Avenue extension to
the Riverfront, this area has become an important connection between downtown and the Willamette
River. The amendment is consistent with this policy.

Chapter 5: Living Downtown, Policy 1. Stimulate multi-unit housing in the downtown core and on the
edges of downtown for a variety of income levels and ownership opportunities.

The amendment would open new options for development on the subject property, including higher
counts of residential units than would be possible under the current code. The amendment is consistent
with this policy.

Chapter 6: Downtown Riverfront, Policy 4. Facilitate dense development in the courthouse area and
other sites between the core of downtown and the river.

5t Avenue has been extended into the Downtown Riverfront and now represents a major corridor for
connection between downtown and the river. Existing and future developments are poised to make this
area one of the busiest subdistricts in the city’s core. The amendment would facilitate denser
development in key locations, and it is therefore consistent with this policy.

Based on the above findings, the proposal is consistent with and supported by the applicable provisions of
these adopted plans.

(3) The amendment is consistent with EC 9.3020 Criteria for Establishment of an S Special Area Zone, in
the case of establishment of a special area zone.

The amendment does not establish a special area zone. Therefore, this criterion does not apply.

Findings - 8
CC Agenda Page 22 October 11, 2023 Work Session - I[tem 1B



EUGENE CITY COUNCIL e\

~

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY ~=

Work Session and Possible Action: MUPTE Application - Riverfront Parcel 3A

Meeting Date: October 11, 2023 Agenda Item: 1C
Department: Planning and Development Staff Contact: Will Dowdy
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number: 541-682-5340
ISSUE STATEMENT

City Council is asked to consider a request for a Multiple-Unit Property Tax Exemption (MUPTE)
for Downtown Riverfront Parcel 3A. (See map in Attachment A.)

BACKGROUND

MUPTE is an incentive program to encourage high-quality, multi-unit downtown housing
especially in areas well served by public transit. Both rental housing and multi-unit housing for
home ownership are eligible; student and transient housing are ineligible. Enabled by State law,
the program provides a 10-year property tax exemption on qualified new multi-unit housing
investments that occur within a specific, targeted area, that meet program requirements, and
that are reviewed and approved by Council. During the exemption period, property owners still
pay taxes on the assessed value of the land and any existing improvements on the property.
Council can deem commercial portions of a project to be a public benefit and include them as part
of the exemption along with the residential portion.

In 2015, after a two-and-a-half-year review, Council revised the MUPTE program criteria, process,
and boundary. See Attachment B for a summary of the program criteria and the process diagram.

Downtown Riverfront

The Urban Renewal Agency purchased approximately 17 acres of Downtown Riverfront land from
Eugene Water and Electric Board in 2018, with the intent to transform it into a new neighborhood
with a public park and private mixed-use development with affordable housing, market rate
housing, and commercial spaces. Based on terms the Urban Renewal Agency Board approved in
May 2020, the Urban Renewal Agency Board and development team signed a Disposition and
Development Agreement (DDA) for the sale of about 8 acres of Downtown Riverfront property to
Atkins Dame. The DDA acknowledges that the developer would be applying for MUPTEs for any
multi-unit housing buildings to be constructed. Noted below are the DDA specifics that apply to
the MUPTE required public benefits. Council previously approved MUPTE applications for Parcels
3BC, 7, and 9.

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

CC Agenda Page 23



Project Overview

The City received the Parcel 3A MUPTE application on May 1, 2023, from Eugene Riverfront
District, LLC (ERD), a legal entity established by Atkins Dame for the Downtown Riverfront. ERD
proposes a seven-story, $126.7 million, multi-unit housing development on Parcel 34, located at
the southeast corner of 4th Avenue and High Street. The project is about 273,000 square feet and
is comprised of 237 residential units (75 studios, 131 one-bedrooms, and 31 two-bedrooms). (See
Attachment C for the MUPTE application, which is also publicly available at www.eugene-
or.gov/MUPTE.)

Per the DDA, ERD will purchase Parcel 3A from the Urban Renewal Agency Board by December
2024. The parcel is currently vacant. Additionally, per the DDA, the Parcel 3A development is
required to have at least 5,000 square feet of commercial space, which is included through 1,150
of dedicated commercial space and five live-work units on the ground floor.

Review Panel

The 2015 MUPTE program update established a Review Panel, tasked with providing a third-party
review of individual applications for the City Manager. The Review Panel is made up of two at-
large representatives selected by neighborhood association boards, two representatives selected
by the board of the neighborhood association in which the proposed project is located, and six
technical professionals selected by the City Manager from the following six groups: architects/
green building specialists; building trades unions; developers; environmental professionals; public
health professionals; and human rights representatives. (See Attachment D for the member list.)

MUPTE Required Public Benefits

The Review Panel considered the application, including compliance with program criteria and the
independent consultant’s financial review (see Attachment E), during two meetings held on June
29 and July 18, 2023. The Review Panel concluded the project meets the required public benefit
criteria. Attachment F contains the Review Panel’s conclusions and recommendation to the City
Manager. Below is a summary of the project’s compliance with the MUPTE required public
benefits. The Planning and Development Director’s Report and Recommendation in Exhibit A to
Attachment G provides a summary of the project and the required public benefits.

e (General Eligibility. The project is located within the MUPTE boundary. The project is not
designed to be student housing, meaning all units will be leased by the whole unit rather than
by individual rooms or beds, the unit configuration does not include several bedrooms with
individual bathrooms and sparse common space, and the project does not focus on amenities
and location selected primarily for individuals attending college and offering limited viability
as potential housing for the general population. Additionally, the project does not include units
designated for transient use or vacation occupancy.

e Compact Urban Development. The proposed project meets the minimum density required by
the MUPTE program. The program requires that projects must be at least 175percent of the
minimum density applicable to the property’s zoning designation. The property is in the S-DR
Downtown Riverfront Special Area Zone, which does not include a minimum residential unit
density. The proposed project achieves a density of 204 units per acre.

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

CC Agenda Page 24


http://www.eugene-or.gov/MUPTE
http://www.eugene-or.gov/MUPTE

Green Building Features. The project will utilize the City of Eugene Building and Permit
Services pathway in order to demonstrate that it will perform at least 10percent more
efficiently than the Oregon Energy Efficiency Specialty Code. If Council approves the MUPTE
application, ERD will be required to submit an energy model with the project’s building permit
application, and a commissioning report will be due 18 months after the project receives its
Certificate of Occupancy to validate energy performance.

Local Economic Impact Plan. ERD proposes a plan for an estimated 63percent of the project’s
dollar volume of professional services and construction contracts to be local to Lane County.
The general contractor is Lease Crutcher Lewis. ERD and their contractor will be required to
promote open competitive opportunities for Minority, Women, and Emerging Small Businesses
and to comply with wage, tax, and licensing laws. ERD will a) provide the City with lists of all
contractors; b) require that each contractor provide an affidavit attesting to not having any
unpaid judgments for construction debt, including unpaid wages, and to being in compliance
with Oregon tax laws; c) post information about the City’s Rights Assistance Program in
English and Spanish on each job site during construction of the project; and d) after
construction, provide a report of the home city or zip code of all the construction labor
workers on each project.

Moderate-Income Housing Contribution. Per the Urban Renewal Agency Board-approved terms
and the DDA, the project will pay a fee dedicated to moderate-income housing, satisfying the
requirement of the MUPTE program. The fee will be 10percent of the total 10-year exemption
benefit. The estimated fee is $1.5 million. The fee is intended to help support moderate-income
housing projects in the community.

Project Design and Compatibility. The project will address basic design concepts in the context
of the project location and will be designed and permitted for construction as shown in the
resolution (should City Council approve the MUPTE). The basic design concepts include the
scale, form, and quality of the building; the mix of project elements; the relationship to the
street and surrounding uses; and parking and circulation.

The project is designed to activate an entrance to the Downtown Riverfront and extend the
urban character of downtown toward the Willamette River. The design is intended to
harmonize with the scale, form, and quality of onsite and adjacent development. It meets the
design intent of designing for human scale, is appropriate for the local climate and natural
resiliency, promotes transparency between the sidewalk and interior spaces, helps define a
sense of place, fits the neighborhood, and employs high-quality materials. (See Report and
Recommendation in Exhibit A to Attachment G for more information on this public benefit.)

The building includes a parking garage enclosed within the building structure and screened
from view.

Historic and Existing Housing Sensitivity. The project is not adjacent to any historic locale. The
City’s historic preservation staff reviewed the project site and deemed that the project does
not negatively impact any historic property in the nearby area. No historic structures or
existing housing were demolished or removed from the property in the two years prior to the

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

CC Agenda Page 25



application date. Several vacant and deteriorating industrial buildings occupied a portion of
the Downtown Riverfront site until they were demolished in 2019. Historic resource review
processes were followed at the time of demolition.

e Project Need. PNW Economics, an independent real estate economics firm, provided an
evaluation of the project’s financial viability with a review of assumptions including income,
lease rates, operating costs, permanent financing, construction costs, and returns. The
consultant concluded that the project would not be viable without the availability of the
exemption and that MUPTE is critical to the success of the project from a financial feasibility
perspective. The consultant found that the project’s pro forma used reasonable assumptions,
with a minor exception for assumed rental rates for two-bedroom units, which he found to be
optimistically high; the consultant’s analysis used lower rents based on current rents in
comparable projects.

Tax Impact

The project is located on property that is publicly owned and will remain so until its presumed
2024 sale to ERD or a subsidiary, meaning it does not currently generate any property tax
revenue. With the presumed purchase, the land will generate property tax revenue, which ERD
will continue to pay throughout the 10-year exemption period should the MUPTE be approved.
The PNW Economics analysis estimated that property tax paid on the land’s value will be
approximately $37,000 in year 1 and total taxes paid during the exemption period will be
approximately $420,000. After the exemption period, the improvements on the parcel will
generate an estimated $1.8 million in year 11. The total estimated exemption amount over the 10-
year period is about $15.3 million.

Public Comments

A display advertisement was published in The Register-Guard on May 9, 2023, soliciting comments
for 30 days. The period ended on June 8, 2023. No written comments have been received as of
September 26, 2023. Testimony received after 5pm on September 26, 2023, will be provided to
Councilors electronically.

MUPTE requires applicants to contact the relevant neighborhood association to share project
information and seek input. Jim Atkins of ERD as well as Rex Ingram and Kevin Valk of Holst
Architecture attended the March 22, 2023, general meeting of the Downtown Neighborhood
Association and presented the proposal. Prior to finalizing their designs, ERD will hold another
neighborhood engagement meeting.

HIP Connection

The proposed project on Parcel 3A will contribute to the Housing Implementation Pipeline (HIP)
goals. The HIP is the 5-year internal work plan to coordinate current and future resources, goals,
and priorities with a systems-thinking approach to housing across the full spectrum from people
experiencing homelessness to overall housing supply. Specifically, this project would provide 237
units towards the 5-year overall housing goal of increasing the amount of housing downtown by
50percent (from 2021), and market-rate units in the forecasted pipeline of City supported units
(Appendix C of the HIP).

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

CC Agenda Page 26


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eugene-or.gov%2F4889%2FHousing-Implementation-Pipeline-HIP&data=04%7C01%7CADSouza%40eugene-or.gov%7Cc51b050e99154fcca64708d9f0afa6c2%7C0c0d3453aa1d41bc8aa35c843d4ca0e8%7C0%7C0%7C637805459475444542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=CWoSok4LtlLh9N8%2BDQW4dKcR4%2Fic8kdUleIsa2rfVpg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eugene-or.gov%2FDocumentCenter%2FView%2F64528%2FC-Forecasted-City-Supported-Shelter-and-Housing-PIPELINE-TABLE-%3FbidId%3D&data=04%7C01%7CADSouza%40eugene-or.gov%7Cc51b050e99154fcca64708d9f0afa6c2%7C0c0d3453aa1d41bc8aa35c843d4ca0e8%7C0%7C0%7C637805459475444542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=z5BKV2iG6PvV2x%2FX63IsetGVfTybEchXTHsGBLqJwvI%3D&reserved=0

MUPTE Program Volume Cap

The MUPTE program goal is to assist in the creation of 1,500 new, multi-family housing units
through redevelopment. At such time that the MUPTE-assisted number of dwelling units
constructed reaches the cap, Council will conduct a comprehensive review to determine if
continuation of the program is desired. As of today, 177 units have been created using the
program from two projects (Gordon Lofts and Ferry Street Manor), or about 12percent of the
volume cap. Council has approved a total of 558 units for MUPTE, which includes 225 units
currently under construction in the Downtown Riverfront. The proposed project on Parcel 3A
would bring the total number of approved units to 795, or 53percent of the program’s volume cap.

Timing

The MUPTE program requires the City Manager to provide Council with a recommendation no
later than 135 days after the application was deemed complete, or September 13, 2023. The City
Manager’s recommendation was provided to the Council on September 7, 2023. By State statute
and City code, if Council has not acted within 180 days from the date the applications are deemed
complete, the application will be deemed approved, which would be October 28, 2023.

Other Possible Parcel 3A Actions

At this work session, Council will be considering two other items related to the proposed project
on Parcel 3A prior to this item. First, the Urban Renewal Agency Board will consider a revision to
terms the Agency Director uses to approve the development agreement with Atkins Dame that
would modify the maximum unit requirements to allow for the construction of the proposed 237-
unit project on Parcel 3A. Second, Council will consider a possible land use code amendment to
increase the maximum building height for this parcel in the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area.
More information about each of these items can be found in their respective Agenda Item
Summaries.

RELATED CITY POLICIES

Climate Action Plan (CAP) 2.0

CAP 2.0 includes multiple strategies that support the development of downtown and increase of
compact housing in the downtown. Smaller homes tend to have a smaller carbon footprint during
construction and use, and housing units built close to transit, jobs, and other amenities allow
residents to access the community using fewer trips.

Eugene Downtown Plan

e Use downtown development tools and incentives to encourage development that provides
character and density downtown.

e Actively pursue public/private development opportunities to achieve the vision for an active,
vital, growing downtown.

¢ Downtown development shall support the urban qualities of density, vitality, livability, and
diversity to create a downtown, urban environment.

Housing Implementation Pipeline (HIP)
Encouraging compact development in the downtown core is one critical way to provide housing
for our growing community. Increasing the number of housing units in the downtown core

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

CC Agenda Page 27


https://www.eugene-or.gov/4284/Climate-Action-Plan-20
https://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/41501/Downtown-Plan
https://www.eugene-or.gov/4889/Housing-Implementation-Pipeline-HIP

achieves other policy goals related to climate recovery and resiliency, compact development
transportation efficiency, downtown vibrancy, and fiscal sustainability. A target goal in the HIP is
to increase the amount of housing downtown by 50percent from 2021: an increase of over 1,000
units.

Envision Eugene Pillars

e Provide ample economic opportunities for all community members.

¢ Promote compact urban development and efficient transportation options.

e Protect, repair, and enhance neighborhood livability.

e Provide for adaptable, flexible, and collaborative implementation.

Strategic Plan Goals: Urgent Community Needs
e Strategic Goal: Stabilize the cost of housing.
o High-Impact Action: Continue to implement and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of
development and redevelopment tools to increase the supply of housing.
e Strategic Goal: Increase the vibrancy, economic vitality, and livability of downtown.
o High-Impact Action: Continue to implement and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of
development and redevelopment tools to support commercial activity.
o High-Impact Action: Improve Eugene’s business environment and reputation as a place to
do business, including improving overall community livability.
e Strategic Goal: Advance climate action and community resilience to natural and human-caused
disasters
o High-Impact Action: Decrease transportation-related emissions and make the
transportation network diverse and adaptable through continued implementation of the
Eugene 2035 Transportation System Plan and related compact development actions in
Envision Eugene.
o High-Impact Action: Continue to implement strategies from the Climate Action Plan 2.0 to
improve and enhance efficiency and resilience of buildings in Eugene, including City-owned
facilities.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL/AGENCY BOARD DIRECTION

July 13, 2015, Work Session

Move to adopt the ordinance concerning multiple-unit property tax exemptions and systems
development charges. The Multi-Unit Property Tax Exemption program was amended and
reinstated. (Motion passed 7:2)

May 26, 2020, Work Session and Urban Renewal Agency Meeting

Move to approve the proposed deal terms and authorize the Agency Director to take all actions
necessary to transfer the real property underlying certain rights-of-way in the Downtown
Riverfront to the City of Eugene. (Motion passed 6:2)

COUNCIL OPTIONS
1. Approve the MUPTE application and adopt the resolution in Attachment G.
2. Approve the application with amended conditions of approval.

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

CC Agenda Page 28


https://issuu.com/cityofeugeneplanning/docs/ee_community_vision_with_appendix_f
https://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/70743/7-26-2023-Strategic-Report-FINAL-PDF
https://youtu.be/PCOA-6_-3BM?t=1876
https://youtu.be/PCOA-6_-3BM?t=1876
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/138630/city-council-work-session-may-26-2020

3. Direct the City Manager to bring back a resolution denying the application because one or
more specified approval criteria are not met.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION

Based on the MUPTE Review Panel’s conclusions, the independent financial consultant analyses,
the quality of the project, and contributions it will make toward bringing downtown to the river
and activating the new Downtown Riverfront neighborhood, the City Manager recommends
approval of the MUPTE application for Parcel 3A on the terms and conditions specified in the
attached resolution (Attachment G).

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:

Move to adopt A Resolution Approving A Multiple-Unit Property Tax Exemption for Residential
Property Located on Lot 1 of the Town Run Plat in Eugene, Oregon (Assessor’s Map 17-03-31-11,
Tax Lot 14200) (Applicant Eugene Riverfront District LLC).

ATTACHMENTS

Map of Eugene Riverfront District Project Site

Summary of MUPTE Program & Process Diagram

MUPTE Application for Parcel 3A

MUPTE Review Panel Member List

PNW Economics Financial Review Memo

MUPTE Review Panel Conclusions

Resolution Approving the Property Tax Exemption
a. Exhibit A: Report and Recommendation of the Planning and Development Director
b. Exhibit B: Building Elevations and Site Plan

ommouowe

A copy of the MUPTE application is available at www.eugene-or.gov/MUPTE.

FOR MORE INFORMATION

Staff Contact: Will Dowdy, Community Development Director
Telephone: 541-682-5340

E-mail: wdowdy@eugene-or.gov

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

CC Agenda Page 29


http://www.eugene-or.gov/MUPTE
mailto:wdowdy@eugene-or.gov

Attachment A

Downtown Riverfront

E 3rd Ave

E 4th Ave

City Hall Alton Baker Park

E 5th Ave

E 6th Ave

E 7th Ave

SUBSTATION

.~ Affordable Housing

[ Developer Purchased

- Developer to Purchase by December 2024

- Developer to Ground Lease - Agency to Keep
[ Agency to Keep

1 = TRiverfront Site - Agency Purchased P O

New Infrastructure A!

E 8th Ave

. Quiet Zone Crossings City of Eugene, PDD
Caution: This map is based on imprecise source data, subject to change, and for general reference only. 9/25/2023

CC Agenda Page 30 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment B

Summary of MUPTE Program & Process Diagram

MUPTE Program

MUPTE is an incentive program to encourage high quality, multi-unit downtown housing
especially in areas well served by public transit. Both rental housing and multi-unit housing for
home ownership are eligible; student housing is ineligible. Enabled by state law, the program
provides a 10-year property tax exemption on qualified new multi-unit housing investments that
occur within a specific, targeted area, that meet program requirements, and that are reviewed
and approved by council. The objective strongly aligns with several of the pillars of Envision
Eugene. Increasing the amount of multi-family housing in the downtown helps reduce pressure
on urban growth boundary (UGB) expansion and protects existing neighborhoods, and takes
advantage of existing infrastructure.

During the exemption period, property owners still pay taxes on the assessed value of the land and
any existing improvements on the property. Council can deem commercial portions of a project to
be a public benefit and include them as part of the exemption along with the residential portion.

In 2015, after a two-and-a-half year review, council revised the program criteria, process, and
boundary. The program changes:

e Removed student housing as an eligible project type

e Increased the required energy efficiency

e Required higher quality design, with design at approval attached to the resolution

e Expanded neighborhood involvement

e Added a moderate-income housing contribution

e Added local economic impact plan

e Added demonstrated project need reviewed by an independent financial consultant

e Added a community member third-party review (MUPTE Review Panel described below)

See below for the process diagram and boundary map. The Required Public Benefit criteria are:

e Compact Urban Development

e Green Building Features (ensuring building energy performance is 10% above code)

e Local Economic Impact Plan (including support for local businesses, minority and women
business enterprises, and ensuring compliance with laws)

e Moderate-Income Housing Contribution

e Project Design and Compatibility (including scale, form, and quality of the building;, mixture
of project elements; relationship to the street and surrounding uses; and parking and
circulation)

e Historic and Existing Housing Sensitivity

e Project Need

MUPTE Review Panel
The 2015 MUPTE update established a Review Panel, tasked with providing a third-party review
of individual applications for the City Manager. The Review Panel:
e Reviews the project applications, including the consultant’s review of the project’s financial
projections.

CC Agenda Page 31 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment B

e Reviews the applicant’s conformance with the Required Public Benefits and making
recommendations regarding approval/denial of the tax exemption to the City Manager.

e Reviews the project’s conformance with approval requirements midway through
construction, at completion of construction, and during the exemption period.

e Assists the City Manager in preparing an Annual Report on progress of the approved
projects, program volume cap, and reporting documentation.

The Review Panel consists of two at-large neighborhood representatives selected by
neighborhood association boards, an additional two representatives selected by the board of the
neighborhood association in which the proposed project is located, and six technical professionals
selected by the City Manager from the following six groups: architects/green building specialists;
building trades union; developers; environmental professionals; public health professionals; and
human rights representatives. Prior Review Panel reports can be found at www.eugene-
or.gov/MUPTE

MUPTE Boundary

CC Agenda Page 32 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C


http://www.eugene-or.gov/MUPTE
http://www.eugene-or.gov/MUPTE

Initial Pre-Application & Design Meeting

Neighborhood Contact #1 Public
Benefits

Application Submitted

Post-Application Design Meeting(s)

30 day written
comment period

City Manager Reccomendation Annual Review

within 135 days of application

Neighborhood Contact #2
Design Input

Pre-Permits: Design Submitted for Review
Conformance with approval & Neighborhood Contact #3

Building Permit Application
Include green bldg docs for all pathways except Earth
Advantage

Construction
- List of contractors on file w/ City
- Post info on City's Rights Assistance Program

To the extent
possible: SDCs/

Neighborhood
Post Construction Info Submitted
Green bldg. docs; construction labor zip codes;
Pay mod-income fee, if applicable
If No:

Terminate Approval

Tax Exemption Granted

Annually:

Attachment B

Compact Urban Development

Green Building

Local Economic Impact
Moderate-Income Housing Contribution
Project Design / Compatibility

Historic & Existing Housing Sensitivity

Annual Report
to City Manager

e Moderate-income housing: Pay fee in years 3 — 10 or update lease rates on mod-income units & submit docs.

e BPS pathway energy usage, if applicable.

CC Agenda Page 33 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

MUPTE Application

The Multi-Unit Property Tax Exemption (MUPTE) is an incentive program to
encourage high quality downtown housing. This ten-year exemption is enabled by state law; each
project must be approved by the Eugene City Council. Both rental housing and multi-unit housing
for home ownership are eligible; student housing is ineligible. The commercial portion of a project
is eligible for an exemption if deemed a public benefit by City Council. Projects must be within an
area generally bounded by Charnelton Street, 11th Avenue, Hilyard Street, the Willamette River,
and Shelton McMurphey Boulevard. (See the map in the Program Guide p. 4.)

RELATED CITY DOCUMENTS

City Council revamped the MUPTE program with Ordinance 20556, adopted on 7/13/2015.
Administrative Rule 53-20-02-F sets out additional program guidelines. The MUPTE Program
Guide includes a summary of the program with ordinance and administrative rule citations (the
guide can be downloaded at www.eugene-or.gov/MUPTE).

GENERAL APPLICATION PROCESS
Prior to completing the application, the applicant needs to:
e Arrange for and attend one public engagement opportunity with residents in the
neighborhood, including the board of any City-recognized affected neighborhood
association. At least one of the owners/principals needs to attend the meeting. (See the

Program Guide for more information on pre-application and post-approval required
This meeting occurred with Downtown Neighborhood Association on
3.22.23 (see meeting notes and attendance provided in application)
e Contact the City to schedule a pre-application and design meeting.

’This meeting occurred with City of Eugene on 3.08.23‘

neighborhood engagement.)

Once submitted, staff will review the non-financial materials to ensure the application is complete.
Once deemed complete, a 30-day written comment period will start. The financial information
will be reviewed by an independent professional consultant. The City Manager will then convene
the Project Review Panel to review the application’s conformance with program criteria and the
consultant’s financial conclusions. The Project Review Panel will meet 3 times per application and
make a recommendation to the City Manager on the application; the City Manager will provide the
City Council with a recommendation on the application for Council consideration.

Complete the information requested in the application packet. A checklist of the required
attachments is included on the next page. Please call or email Dylan Huber-Heidorn if you have
questions at 541-682-5475 or dhuber-heidorn@eugene-or.gov.

e Submit one paper hard copy of the completed application to:
City of Eugene
ATTN: Dylan Huber-Heidorn
99 West 10th Avenue
Eugene, OR 97401

e Email a digital copy to: dhuber-heidorn@eugene-or.gov

1

CC Agenda Page 34 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

CC Agenda Page 35 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



fh 0 Attachment C

RIVER Eugene Riverfront District

DISTRICT Parcel 3A

eugene, oregon Eugene, Oregon

MUPTE Application

April 21, 2023

HOLST

CC Agenda Page 36 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Table of Contents

Eugene Riverfront District

Parcel 3A
Eugene, Oregon

Cover Letter

MUPTE Application

-Project Information Sheet

-Legal Description

-Neighborhood Engagement
*Meeting Agenda
*Meeting Minutes + Comments
*Meeting Attendance Sheet

Required Public Benefits
-Worksheet
-Narrative

Green Building Features
-Worksheet
-Narrative

Local Economic Impact Plan
-Worksheet
-Narrative

Moderate Income Housing
Worksheet NA Omitted

Project Design and Compatibility
-Worksheet

-Schematic Drawings

-Narrative

Historic Housing and Sensitivity
-Historic Housing Map

Attachment C

H. Financial Information
-Financial Cost Summary Sources
-Operating Expenses
-10 Year Pro Forma with/without MUPTE
-Debt Calculation
-Rate of Return Analysis
-Development Budget

I.  Application Finalization Worksheet

-City of Eugene Planning Memorandum (4.19.23)

HOLST

CC Agenda Page 37 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

Cover Letter

Eugene Riverfront District

Parcel 3A
Eugene, Oregon

Thank you for this opportunity to submit our application for the City of Eugene’s Multi-Unit
Property Tax Exemption incentive program. As we submit this application for Parcel 3A,
vertical construction of Eugene's Riverfront District is underway with the first building, Parcel
7, under construction. In turn, we are very excited to submit this application as part of the
redevelopment in progress and to contribute to the anticipated success of the ERD vision.

The application materials herein demonstrate our project’s need for tax relief under the
MUPTE program. Without the benefit of the MUPTE incentive, our project will not be
economically feasible and will therefore not be realized.

Parcel 3A is a proposed $126.8 million mixed-use, multifamily, seven-story building. The
project will provide 237 new apartments, resident amenities such as a clubrooms, a fitness
center, and several outdoor community patio spaces. The project will also provide a
ground-floor cafe, and live/work units along the sidewalk, all intended to create a vibrant
streetscape serving both residents of the building and the neighborhood. There will be tenant
parking for 177 cars and 11 guest parking spaces within the building's structured parking
garage. The project is approximately 287,000 square feet on a 50,690 square foot lot. Our
proposed design will provide 204 units per acre, anticipated to be a tremendous boost to
Eugene’s housing inventory at a time when most needed.

Our project site occupies a historically significant location in Eugene. Parcel 3A adjoins the
East Skinner Butte Historic District to the northwest with Skinner Butte rising to almost 700
feet beyond. To the Southeast of our building, the Ferry Street Bridge and Viaduct passes
over our site’s neighboring parcels providing a direct connection from downtown Eugene to
the north side of the Willamette River (one of a few river crossings). Our site specifically was
once part of Eugene’s industrial heart ‘that pumped the wheels of progress for 75 years.’
With its own extensive Millrace system for providing water-power, our site and its contiguous
parcels were home to a network of industrial mills that produced a variety of goods such as
flour (gristmill), lumber, wool, furniture, cider / vinegar and leather (tanneries) among others.

Our Site’s historical significance also includes important social history. The Mims house, part
of the Skinner Butte Historic District, is less than a block to the northwest. Built in 1867, it is
considered to be one of the oldest homes in Eugene. Annie Mims was a relevant figure in
Eugene’s civil rights era and her home was known as a safe haven for visitors, travelers,
students and neighbors of African American descent.

The properties adjoining the Mims house also include significant historic landmarks and
represent various architectural styles, such as the Queen Anne Style, Swiss Bungalow,
Gothic, and Greek Revival. This somewhat eclectic patchwork of neighboring buildings and
styles could arguably be considered to embody the spirit of Eugene.

CC Agenda Page 38 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

Cover Letter

Eugene Riverfront District

Parcel 3A
Eugene, Oregon

Our project’s design and development team have thoughtfully considered our site’s context.
Parcel 3A has been designed in partnership with adjoining River District parcels to reinforce
connections to the north along Mill Alley (designed as a pedestrian Paseo) and along High
street. Similarly, 5th Avenue (at the corner of 5th and High) will become a pedestrian
oriented gateway from the West (Market District). It is our intention that our new river
district neighborhood will connect our site’s significant surrounding context to the river.

Our design approach has been a collaborative effort. Previously submitted and approved
MUPTE applications by SERA architects include buildings on Parcels 7, 9 and the adjacent
Parcel 3BC. Our proposed project on Parcel 3A, at the corner of High Street and 5th
Avenue, will provide a gateway to the Eugene River District from downtown. Our design
thinking began by reviewing established ERD design guidelines and the master planning
work provided by SERA. With these references in mind, our proposed building at Parcel 3A
is designed to be unique while fitting into its context. From a planning perspective, multiple
architects, each with their own unique approach and design philosophy contribute to a
richer, more dynamic and layered urban experience.

Our application shows that there is tremendous public benefit from our proposed building at
Parcel 3A. Our project will provide much needed housing in Eugene in a compact urban
development maximizing potential new living units while minimizing development that
infringes on natural resources. We are proposing a building design sensitive to its context
and to the goals of the River District Design Guidelines. Our design will provide a high
quality and standard of living, where health and happiness are of highest priority. Our
project will also bring jobs to the region, not just during construction but also longer-term
jobs in management, operations, and community support and services.

Creating buildings of significance and permanence is a quintessential component in the
development of this district. Our proposed project at Parcel 3A will use a high-quality
material palette on the building exterior. Our building will reference the brick ‘warehouse
aesthetic’ inspired by the industrial legacy of our site. We have also looked for opportunities
to enliven the street with activity through design elements such as residential stoops, patios,
attractive landscaping, thoughtful lighting and commercial storefronts. A similar strategy
has been used above grade on the exterior of the building with balconies, decks and larger
gathering spaces overlooking the street below. These characteristics will contribute to a
vibrant and significant neighborhood that will become a new, sought after destination along
the Willamette River.

CC Agenda Page 39 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

Cover Letter

Eugene Riverfront District

Parcel 3A
Eugene, Oregon

A key focus of our building design is a committed approach to the health and well-being of
our residents and a dedication to sustainable goals. To ensure that our project will align
with these goals, we are optionally pursuing Fitwel and Earth Advantage certifications. We
intend to incorporate the strategies from these programs to further promote healthy living
for residents and to minimize the project’s environmental impact.

Prior to the development of Eugene’s Riverfront District, this industrial area created a
barrier to the Willamette River from Eugene’s downtown. As a whole, our proposed project
at parcel 3A will contribute to the City’s vision to connect Eugene's downtown to the
Willamette River. As one of Eugene’s greatest assets, and perhaps the root of its very
origin, the riverfront will soon be home to a new neighborhood, where residents can enjoy
the beauty of its natural setting along with a much-needed connection to the vibrant
diversity of the city.

CC Agenda Page 40 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



MUPTE Application Attachment C

A. General Project Information

Applicant Information
Applicant's Name: Eugene Riverfront District, LLC. c/o Jim Atkins

=
<

Address: 1255 NW 9th Ave, Suite 119

City: Portland State: OR Zip Code: 97209
Telephone Number; 971.506.5104
E-mail Address: Jim@atkinsdame.com

Housing Project Name: ERD parcel 3a

Site Location
Assessor’s Property Acct No.: 1903564
Map / Tax Lot No. Map 17033111 / Tax Lot 14200

Site Location Address: Parcel 3ais bound by 5th St, (southern boudary), High St. (west), 4th St, (north) and Mill Alley (east)
(if no address available, provide a written description)

E%Attach legal description of the property.

Current Use & Site Information
Current Zoning: s-DR/MU/2

Parcel Size: 51,636 sf (1.16 acre)

Minimum Density Allowed: 22 units / Acre

Maximum Density Allowed: 205 units / Acre

Number of Parking Spaces Required: 0.75 parking spaces per unit - 177

Assessed Value of Land :  $1,605,363 based on cost

Assessed Value of Improvements: NA

% Attach a written description of the existing use of the property.

[s existing sound housing or housing that can be rehabilitated on the property? OYes @ No
E_Ifyes attach a plan for relocation or a justification for elimination.

Proposed Project Information

Density of Proposed Project: 204 units per net acre
Proposed No. of Parking Spaces: 177
Proposed Lot Coverage: 94% %
Building Footprint: 47,592 square feet
Building Square Footage: 272,983 square feet
Commercial Square Footage: 5524 square feet
MUPTE Application 8

CC Agenda Page 41 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

The commercial portion of a project is eligible for an exemption, if it is deemed a public
benefit by City Council. Do you want City Council to consider exempting the

commercial portion of the project also? OYes @ No

Student housing and transient uses are not eligible for the MUPTE program. 1
re to indicate that student housing and transient uses will not be
art of the proposed project.

Total Number of Dwelling Units: 237 (All projects must have 5 or more units)

Total Number of Bedrooms: 26s

No. of Floors: 7

UNIT MIX
Unit Size # Avg. Square Feet Per Unit Proposed Avg. Rental Rate
Studio / efficiency 75 462 $1,575
One bedroom 131 713 $2,325
Two bedroom 31 1,342 $3,937

Three bedroom

Four bedroom

Five bedroom

Commercial /retail

ADA Accessible

Parking - onsite

Parking - offsite

Compliance with Local Law
The proposed project must, at all relevant times, be in conformance with:

a) Alllocal plans and planning regulations, including special or district-wide plans
developed and adopted pursuant to ORS chapters 195, 196. 197, 215 and 227, that are
applicable at the time the application is approved

b) Licensing laws.

%ﬁﬁﬁa&to indicate your understanding of this requirement and commitment to adhere to
it.

1 Eugene Code 2.946 (2)(a) states that exemptions cannot be given for a “project designed for the leasing of individual
rooms or beds, rather than entire apartment units, or a project otherwise designed primarily for individuals attending
college.” Student housing units usually take the form of several bedrooms with individual bathrooms and sparse
common space. Project amenities and location are selected to appeal only to students and offer limited viability as
potential housing for the general population, particularly families.

MUPTE Application CC Agenda Page 42 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

Legal Description of Property

Eugene Riverfront District

Parcel 3A
Eugene, Oregon

Legal Description
Parcel 3A (Lot 1): Lot 1, TOWN RUN, as platted and recorded April 3, 2020,
Reception No. 2020-016334, C.S. File No. 45022, Lane County Deeds and Records,

in Lane County, Oregon

Written Description

Property is undeveloped land with recently completed public infrastructure
improvements (roadways and utilities) as part of the Eugene Riverfront District
Development surrounding the property.

CC Agenda Page 43 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

10



Attachment C

Neighborhood Engagement

Provide the following to document your neighborhood engagement. (See Program Guide, page 7
for more information on neighborhood engagement requirements)

Neighborhood Association: Eugene Downtown Neighborhood Association

Date of Meeting: 3.22.23

Name(s) of Principal(s)/Owner(s) in Attendance: Jim Atkins, Kevin Valk, Rex Ingram

EE‘ Attach minutes from the meeting and comments received. If not an official neighborhood
event, attach evidence of advertising method(s) and explanation for why it was not an official

event.

11
MUPTE Application

CC Agenda Page 44 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

Neighborhood Meeting
Downtown Neighborhood Association
Eugene Riverfront District

Parcel 3A
Eugene, Oregon

Downtown Neighborhood Association
March 22, 2023
Meeting Minutes
Attendance List

12

CC Agenda Page 45 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



HOLST

123 NE 3" AVE STE 310
PORTLAND, OR

97232

503.233.9856

HOLSTARC.COM

Attachment C

DATE

3.22.23

MEETING MINUTES

PROJECT NAME PROJECT #

Atkins Dame Eugene 22-009

Lot3a

SUBJECT ATTENDEES

Downtown Eugene Neighborhood Jim Atkins, Atkins + Dame
meeting no. 1. Kevin Valk, Holst

CC

Rex Ingram, Holst
DNA - see attahed sign in sheet for
attendees

PREPARED BY

Rex Ingram

On Wednesday evening, the Eugene Riverfront District’s Parcel 3A was presented to
the Downtown Neighborhood Association by Jim Atkins, Kevin Valk and Rex Ingram.
The presentation consisted of a slide show following the outline below:

Atkins + Dame / Holst Introduction (brief)
Project Overview

Project is 7 Story, Mixed Use, Multifamily Building

237 New Apartments, Studios, 1 and 2 bedroom units

8 Live / Work Units along High St and 5" Ave

6 Loft style units along 4™ Ave

Ground floor Café with outdoor seating area along 5t Ave (1150sf)

Ground floor flex space for multipurpose use (4! and High) (950sf)

Large Lobby on building corner — flexible use space, gathering or extension
of café

Garage parking for 178 cars

Building resident amenities include clubrooms (Level 3 + 7), Fitness Center
Two outdoor terrace / courtyard amenities for residents including
landscaping and reflecting pool, gathering spaces, BBQ, outdoor fitness and
spa area

Main cladding materials are Brick, Metal panel.

13

CC Agenda Page 46 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



HOLST

Building Concept Summary

Create a dynamic building that provides a new gateway to the River District.

Attachment C

Design to promote the connection of Downtown to the River.
Create a sense of place and permanence with quality and durable building
materials such as brick, steel, metal cladding, and storefront.

Design for human scale through articulation of fagade and by incorporating

elements like entry stoops, landscaping, storefront, lighting, balconies and

terraces.

Design for local climate and context with sheltered entries and building

canopies.

Make an inviting place where people would want to live supported by

amenities such as gathering spaces, community rooms, outdoor decks and

terraces, and an indoor / outdoor fitness center.
Promote neighborhood activity and safety along the street with building

transparency and retail / communal spaces for residents and members of the

community.

Building plans and rendered images:

Site plan and Context
Building Floor Plans
Exterior rendered images

SW Corner

NW Corner

Alley Elevation

View of Level 3 Patio / Deck amenity

Enlarged views of storefront along 5t and at corner of 5 and High Street

Project Public Benefits

1.

2.

Compact Urban Development

204 units per acre — 7-story building

Green Building Features.
Energy efficiency of at least

10% better than code

Voluntarily pursuing Earth Advantage Gold and Fitwel certifications

Economic Impact

More than 60% of total construction contracts are local to Lane county

exceeding the required 50%

Moderate income housing contribution

Project will contribute to a dedicated moderate-income housing fund to be

used by Eugene to create more affordable housing

Design and compatibility

Building design in conformance with city and community design guidelines

Historic and Existing Housing Sensitivity
Our proposed development will not displace any existing housing or

negatively impact historic or
Project Need

Eugene has seen steady growth - population increase of 12.98% between
2010 and 2020 [US census].

CC Agenda Page 47

city landmarks

Population growth has outpaced the

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

14



HOLST

Vi.

vii.

Attachment C

construction of new homes, the availability of housing is an ever growing
challenge.

Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area
Review of the Skinner Butte Height Limitation Area (HLA)
Map of HLA showing transition zone and our building location

DNA Questions / Answers

1. What is minimum parking requirement?
Eugene required zoning is .75 parking to number of units. Some concern
was raised regarding minimum parking with a comment about the adjacent
historic district, as well as the city's interest in the EWEB building. The larger
master plan strategy was discussed with reference to higher parking to unit
ratios at other buildings, including Portal across the alley.

2. Will the project be a Highrise and will the project use CLT construction?
No, the project will be a midrise; with highest occupied floor not exceeding
75'. The project will be conventionally framed and will not use CLT
construction.

3. How much retail will there be (in our building and within the district)?
There will be corner retail in parcel 3a (we showed our Café space on the
ground floor plan), with additional commercial opportunities in the live / work
units. There will also be retail space provided in other ERD neighboring
parcels.

4. s there a retail strategy or an interim plan for temporary retail before
buildings can be built or long-term tenants can be found?
Jim Atkins mentioned the possibility of food cart pods on retail sites in
conjunction with city park programming. Jim also provided a case study
where excess retail space, as part of a multifamily development, has
remained vacant; therefore, focus is to create housing first followed by retail
| commercial space.

5. When are we seeking a building permit?
The project is in its feasibility phase at this time; we are preparing for our
MUPTE application. We have not yet determined the date for our permit
submittal.

6. Has a traffic study been done?
This is being done currently for building 3a (and adjoining parcel 3bc), and
done with regards to the larger master planning process.

7. What will be anticipated rents?
The project will provide rent at a market rate, to be determined.

15

CC Agenda Page 48 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



HOLsT

ATKINS + DAME EUGENE - PARCEL 3A
THE LANDING

DOWNTOWN NEIGHBORHODD MEETING

MARCH 22,

2023 - 6PM EUGENE LIBRARY

Meeting number 1 — Eugene River District — Parcel 3A

MEETING ATTENDANCE SIGN-IN

Attachment C

NAME ADDRESS PHONE ND. EMAIL
1 | KEVIN VALK 123 NE 3% AVE, STE 310 503.233.9856 KVALK@HOLSTARC.COM
PORTLAND OR 97232
2 | REX INGRAM 123 NE 3% AVE, STE 310 503.233.9856 X | RINGRAM@HOLSTARC COM
PORTLAND OR 97232 168
A ‘A )]
3 /;/ALE any 2o W Ay, iH?f-"ﬁ?} Wy o) bl Py éua'v p&?z«z;.i/‘ oy |
4 ]—u\){/\mm“‘ﬂh éh e (Pasg. S ouing | 5414489~ 0008| | ek-@ S 5\‘ Mg . pUTy
3 0 = - . :
s |Michael ¢ unninghd D+O’?K SJFM@- f)““‘ﬁIS‘LfO}(DMIKr’BannQ[ﬁ@aml,CQm
: = W/ : .
. 'Rym e ot %”57 Cty Ve SF 591-5H3-C57¢ | femmylyes (g gmail- Lom
CiV WSt
© | Corno Lol S N g 20-160) Mirad20 e oo
. | A t Logu~ 5
ﬁ\f;{;ﬁ (o ;}:E&g‘ Q(JBC&ME“LB HH qf;ulu ushu”‘mq@ s ri&l;@’)(\d%_
AS 0 W Broadwady ”1-'1{0113:.4; 51‘)?- : 1 ot
gUl-Cmr\f'_TCw‘.Of Aed 1S Eyoene 9740 5 Ocﬂt;f% w2amelaylordOegmail.com | ©
I “l - -
C)np:g (s terlitz 295 w GJPMWV 2357 Benescérg @ (om tayt . Pt
AR T s 5({11%—5{& - ehnson@ Ve o
\ﬁcﬂum (M50 200y Cleh 24 y/-682-8% |\ Ciof',—Dﬂ rene -0f ai;;-\/
_/m%.‘n \"Z chbev |Dw L Charnellon St By 72y 27232 | univ ke @ c’lhlf't([p‘(!y dvgl
Q}p\n& TR |38 v Boad 03 BB\ ) grhon\, G
-] LL-CJ = . an = i d:"}-u-\‘rr
-\5(3-#\{5 MU'S""‘ /45;155: £ Fh 525?!015' J”‘""‘-':jd‘- BIITEGr L
16

CC Agenda P

age 49

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



N~
-

€202 ‘TC HOYVIN

INOOH HIONIS - d71d ANODIS - AdVdHdIT O17dNd INION3
ONILITIN INFJNFOVONT AOOHHOGHOIIN VYNA 1SdId

V€ 130dVd - INION3 JNVA + SNIXLY

Attachment C

October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C

=
N
)
0]
©
[a W
©
o
=)
)
o0
<<
Q
|




Attachment C

B. Required Public Benefits
Use this section to address each of the following required public benefits related to the proposed
project. Several benefits extend beyond the period of the tax exemption. More information will be
provided about those benefits if the application is approved.

1. Compact Urban Development
The MUPTE program is designed to encourage higher density housing and redevelopment in the
City’s downtown area.
a) Puta check next to the zone category of the property:
[ Residential zones: atleast 175% of minimum density for the zone.
(e.g. R-4 High Density Residential)
[0 Form-based zones with height limit of three or four stories: atleast 30 units per net acre.
(e.g. S-DR Downtown Riverfront Special Area)
[ 1 Mixed-use development 2: at least the minimum density in the zone.
(e.g. C-2 Community Commercial, C-3 Major Commercial)
All other areas, including residential-only development in commercial or mixed use zones:

at least 50 units per net acre.
(e.g. S-W Whiteaker Special Area, S-F Fifth Avenue Special Area, S-H Historic, C-2 Community Commercial,
C-3 Major Commercial)

b) Density for proposed project: 204 units per net acre

2. Green Building Features

The green building requirement is that projects perform at least 10% more efficiently than the
performance established in the 2021 Oregon Energy Efficiency Specialty Code (OEESC).
Complete the attached Green Building Features Worksheet (page 6)

3. Local Economic Impact Plan
To ensure a substantial portion of the local tax benefit yields a benefit to the local community,
applicants are required to complete the Local Economic Impact Plan Worksheet (page 10).

4. Moderate-Income Housing Contribution

The project owner must either a) pay a fee to be dedicated to moderate-income housing or b)
include not less than 30% of the total units as moderate-income housing units. Indicate below
how this proposed project will contribute to moderate-income housing.

v'|  Pay the moderate-income housing fee of 10% of the total exemption benefit
for the 10-year benefit.

_E Paid upfront with a 5% discount

_ Paid annually in years 3 through 10

Include moderate-income housing units. Complete the Moderate-Income
Housing Worksheet (page 12).

2 Mixed-use development incorporates both commercial and residential use in the same building.

MUPTE Application 18

CC Agenda Page 51 October 11, 2023 Work Session - Item 1C



Attachment C

5. Project Design and Compatibility

MUPTE projects need to address basic design concepts in the context of the project location.
See attached Project Design and Compatibility Worksheet (page 13) for information about
required attachments.

6. Historic & Existing Housing Sensitivity
Each MUPTE project must be evaluated for impacts to historic locales and existing housing.
Complete the attached Historic and Existing Housing Sensitivity Worksheet (page 15)

7. Project Would not be Built Without Exemption
The applicant must demonstrate that the project as proposed could not be built but for the benefit
of the tax exemption. Attach the following documentation:
—| e ten-year pro-forma with MUPTE,
e ten year pro-forma without MUPTE,
e analysis of the projected ten-year cash-on-cash rate of return for the proposed project,
e list of assumptions made to create the pro-formas, including a description of how property
taxes were estimated for the without MUPTE pro-forma, and the moderate-income housing
fee or rent levels,

e development budget, and
e sources and us